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SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP 

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Karnavati Aviation Private Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kamavati Aviation Private Limited (the "Company"), 
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, 
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory 
information (hereinafter referred to as the "financial statements"). 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the "Act") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in 
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensive income, 
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for· Opinion 

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 'Auditor's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of our report. We are independent of the Company 
in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the fin_ancial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements. 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon ('Other Information') 

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Board of Directors' report, including Annexures to Board of Directors' report, but does 
not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in 
doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have 
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to rep�rt that 
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 























Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars Notes
As at

March 31, 2025

As at

March 31, 2024

ASSETS

Non-Current Assets

Property, plant and equipment 3(a) 43,218.09                   48,088.97                   

Right-of-Use Assets 3(b) 49,017.49                   32,631.58                     

Capital work-in-progress 3(c) 20.89                          -                                

Financial Assets

Other financial assets 4 797.37                          687.40                         

Income Tax Assets (Net) 345.08                        390.39                         

Other non-current assets 5 3,131.15                        35.00                            

96,530.07                   81,833.34                     

Current Assets 

Inventories 6 1,203.20                      869.56                         

Financial Assets

(i)  Trade receivables 7 7,206.08                     13,897.02                     

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 8 631.05                         782.15                           

(iii) Other financial assets 4 58.14                           23.72                             

Other Current Assets 5 2,796.42                      2,113.64                        

11,894.89                    17,686.09                    

Total Assets 108,424.96               99,519.43                   

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

Equity Share Capital 9 4,500.00                    4,500.00                     

Instruments entirely equity in nature 10 30,000.00                  30,000.00                   

Other Equity 11 (370.25)                        (1,644.24)                     

Total Equity 34,129.75                    32,855.76                     

LIABILITIES 

Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 9,401.46                     20,307.46                    

(ii) Lease Liabilities 12 47,985.49                   34,450.02                    

Provisions 13 199.58                         300.29                         

57,586.53                   55,057.77                     

Current Liabilities

Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 14 225.00                        -                                

(ii) Lease Liabilities 12 6,593.97                      2,619.82                       

(iii) Trade Payables

     - total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 15 76.66                           27.82                            

     - total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

       and small enterprises 1,289.99                      2,297.08                      

(iv) Other financial liabilities 16 8,005.34                     6,408.97                      

Other Current Liabilities 17 403.60                        193.15                           

Provisions 13 114.12                          59.06                           

16,708.68                   11,605.90                     

Total Liabilities 74,295.21                    66,663.67                    

Total Equity and Liabilities 108,424.96               99,519.43                   

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 118707W/W100724

Harshil Shah Capt. Sarojkumar Mohapatra Dr. Malay Mahadevia

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 181748 DIN: 09404900 DIN: 00064110

Piyush Gandhi Komal Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars Notes
For the year ended

March 31, 2025

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

INCOME

Revenue from operations 18 31,079.09                           22,352.88                      

Other income 19 56.51                                   35.36                              
Total Income 31,135.60                         22,388.24                    

EXPENSES

Operating expenses 20 5,082.70                             4,187.72                         

Employee benefits expense 21 2,333.91                              1,568.40                        

Finance costs 22 3,143.11                               2,532.12                          

Depreciation and amortization expense 3 10,346.15                           6,813.89                        

Foreign Exchange Loss (net) 1,233.95                              706.43                           

Other expenses 23 7,791.48                              5,689.80                       

Total Expense 29,931.30                         21,498.36                    

Profit before tax 1,204.30                           889.88                        

Tax expense: 24

Current Tax -                                      -                                 

Deferred Tax -                                      -                                 

Income tax expense -                                   -                               
Profit for the year (A) 1,204.30                           889.88                        

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans (net of tax) 69.69                                  (41.15)                             

Income tax effect -                                      -                                 

Total Other Comprehensive Income (Loss) (net of tax) (B) 69.69                               (41.15)                           

Total comprehensive Income for the year (net of tax) (A+B) 1,273.99                           848.73                         

Basic and Diluted earnings per equity shares (in ₹) face value of ₹10 each 25 2.68                                  1.98                              

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 118707W/W100724

Harshil Shah Capt. Sarojkumar Mohapatra Dr. Malay Mahadevia

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 181748 DIN: 09404900 DIN: 00064110

Piyush Gandhi Komal Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2025  ₹ in Lacs

Reserves and Surplus

Retained Earning

Balance as on April 01, 2023 4,500.00         1,793.52                          (4,286.49)                         30,000.00             32,007.03                    

Profit for the year -                    -                                  889.88                             -                          889.88                        

Other Comprehensive Income

Re-measurement loss on defined benefit plans (net of tax) -                    -                                  (41.15)                                -                          (41.15)                           

Total Comprehensive Income for the year -                    -                                  848.73                              -                          848.73                         

Balance as at March 31, 2024 4,500.00        1,793.52                        (3,437.76)                        30,000.00            32,855.76                  

Profit for the year -                    -                                  1,204.30                           -                          1,204.30                      

Other Comprehensive Income

Re-measurement gains on defined benefit plans (net of tax) -                    -                                  69.69                                -                          69.69                           

Total Comprehensive gain for the year -                    -                                  1,273.99                            -                          1,273.99                       

Balance as at March 31, 2025 4,500.00        1,793.52                        (2,163.77)                         30,000.00            34,129.75                   

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 118707W/W100724

Harshil Shah Capt. Sarojkumar Mohapatra Dr. Malay Mahadevia

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 181748 DIN: 09404900 DIN: 00064110

Piyush Gandhi Komal Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025

Particulars
Equity Share

Capital

Other Equity
Perpetual Debt 

(refer note 11 (i))

Total

Equity
Equity Component of 

Borrowing



Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2025  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025

For the year ended

March 31, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax as per statement of profit and loss 1,204.30                            889.88                              

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 10,346.15                           6,813.89                            

Finance Cost 3,143.11                              2,532.12                              

Unrealised foreign exchange loss 1,233.95                             706.43                               

Loss on sale / discard of Property, Plant and Equipment (net) -                                      0.02                                    

Unclaimed liabilities / excess provision written back (0.22)                                   (7.61)                                    

Operating profit before working capital changes 15,927.29                         10,934.73                        

Decrease / (Increase) in trade receivables 6,690.94                           (4,368.13)                           

(Increase) in inventories (333.64)                              (397.41)                               

(Increase) in financial assets (144.39)                               (180.97)                               

(Increase) / Decrease in other assets (3,778.93)                            10,177.24                            

(Decrease) / Increase in trade payables (985.71)                               1,271.31                               

Increase in other liabilities 210.45                                82.54                                  

Increase in provisions 24.04                                 83.82                                  

Increase in financial liabilities 1,591.16                              6,402.70                            

Cash generated from operations 19,201.21                         24,005.83                       

Direct taxes paid / (refund) (net) 45.31                                   (62.81)                                 

Net cash inflow from from operating activities                              (A) 19,246.52                        23,943.02                        

Cash flows from investing activities

(1,228.49)                           (35,191.96)                          

Net cash inflow (used in) investing activities                                 (B) (1,228.49)                         (35,191.96)                       

Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from Non-Current borrowings 31,130.00                           42,243.00                         

Repayment of Non-Current borrowings (41,811.00)                          (25,244.00)                        

Repayment of Lease Liabilities (6,273.77)                            (3,891.61)                            

Finance Cost paid (1,214.36)                            (1,165.07)                            

Net cash inflow (used in) financing activities                                 (C) (18,169.13)                        11,942.32                         

Net (Decrease) / Increase in cash & cash equivalents                                (A + B + C) (151.10)                                693.38                               

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 782.15                                88.77                                  

Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year (Refer Note - 8) 631.05                              782.15                              

Component of cash and cash equivalents (Refer Note - 8)

Cash on hand -                                      -                                      

Balances with scheduled bank

631.05                                782.15                                

Total cash and cash equivalents 631.05                              782.15                              

Summary of material accounting policies - 2.3

Note :

1

2

-                                      

The accompanying notes form an integral part of financial statements

As per our report of even date

For SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 118707W/W100724

Harshil Shah Capt. Sarojkumar Mohapatra Dr. Malay Mahadevia

Partner Director Director

Membership No. 181748 DIN: 09404900 DIN: 00064110

Piyush Gandhi Komal Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025

Disclosure with regards to changes in liabilities arising from Financing activities as set out in Ind AS 7 – Statement of Cash flows is 

presented under note 27.

The Cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in the Ind AS 7 on Cash Flow Statements notified under

section 133 of The Companies Act, 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 (as

amended).

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (Including Capital in Work in Progress, 

other Intangible assets, capital advances and capital creditors)

 - In Current Accounts

Adjustment for :



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1 Corporate information

2.1 Basis of preparation

-Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

2.2

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of

causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing

circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the

control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.            

i) Useful life and residual value of property, plant and equipments and intangible assets:

Determination of the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets and the assessment as to which components of

the cost may be capitalised. Useful life of these assets is based on the life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 or based on

technical estimates, taking into account the nature of the asset, estimated usage, expected residual values and operating conditions of the asset.

Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable/ amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of

the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of certain software, IT

equipment and other plant and equipment.

ii) Taxes:

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in estimating budgeted profits for the purpose of paying advance tax,

determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions. Significant management

judgement is also required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of

future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies, including estimates of temporary differences reversing on account of available

benefits from the Income Tax Act, 1961.

iii) Fair value measurement of financial instruments:

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited (‘KAPL’, ‘the Company’), is a private company domiciled in India having CIN: U63090GJ2007PTC051309 is in

the business of providing aviation services under the category of Non-Scheduled Operator. KAPL is wholly owned subsidiary company of Adani

Ports & Special Economic Zone Limited. The registered address of the compnay is Adani Corporate House, Shantigram, Near Vaishno Devi Circle,

S. G. Highway, Khodiyar Ahmedabad Ahmedabad GJ 382421 IN

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following assets and liabilities which have been

measured at fair value:

The financial statements are presented in INR (₹) (Indian Rupees) which is also Company's functional currency and all values are rounded to the

nearest Lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under section 133

of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make certain estimates and assumptions that affect

the reported amounts of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) and the reported income and expenses during the year. The

management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ

due to these estimates and differences between the actual results and the estimates are recognised in the periods in which the results are known

/ materialised. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainity

In estimating the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities, the Company uses market observable data to the extent available. Where

such Level 1 inputs are not available, the Company establishes appropriate valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The inputs to these

models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair

values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors

could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

iv) Recognition and measurement of Contingent liabilities, provisions and uncertain tax positions:

There are various legal, direct and indirect tax matters and other obligations including local and state levies, availing input tax credits etc., which

may impact the Company. Evaluation of uncertain liabilities and contingent liabilities arising out of above matters and recognition and

measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and

circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from the figure included in

other provisions.



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

2.3 Summary of Material Accounting Policies Information

a)

Any asset or liability is classified as current if it satisfies any of the following conditions:

b)  Inventories

 - Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on a moving weighted average basis.

 - Stores and Spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories.

 - Costs incurred that relate to future contract activities are recognised as ”Project Work in Progress”.

- Project work in progress comprise specific contract costs and other directly attributable overheads including borrowing costs which can be

allocated on specific contract cost is, valued at lower of cost and net realisable value

 - Net Realizable Value in respect of store and spares is the estimated current procurement price in the ordinary course of the business.

At each balance sheet date, based on discussions with the respective counter-parties and internal assessment of their credit worthiness, the

management assesses the recoverability of outstanding receivables and advances. Such assessment requires significant management judgement

based on financial position of the counter-parties, market information and other relevant factors.

vii) Impairment of Non Financial Assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value

less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data for similar assets or

observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset.The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The recoverable

amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used.

viii) Impairment of Financial Assets

The impairment provisions for trade receivables are made considering simplified approach based on assumptions about risk of default and

expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation based on

the company’s past history and other factors at the end of each reporting period. In case of other financial assets, the Company applies general

approach for recognition of impairment losses wherein the Company uses judgement in considering the probability of default upon initial

recognition and whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period.

Stores and Spares: 

v) Defined benefit plans (Gratuity benefits):

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An

actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination

of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

vi) Recoverability of advances/ receivables:

Current & Non-Current Classification

All other assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities respectively.

For the purpose of current/non-current classification of assets and liabilities, the Company has ascertained its normal operating cycle as twelve

months. This is based on the nature of services and time between acquisition of assets or inventories for processing and their realisation in cash

and cash equivalents.

i. The asset/liability is expected to be realised / settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;

ii. The asset is intended for sale or consumption;

iii. The asset/liability is  held primarily for the purpose of trading;

iv. The asset/liability is  expected to be realised/settled within twelve months after the reporting period;

v. The asset is Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months

    after the reporting period;

vi. In case of liability, the Company  does not have unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve

     months after the reporting period.



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

c)  Cash and cash equivalents

d) Property, plant and equipment (PPE)

i. Recognition and Measurement

ii. Subsequent measurement

ii. Depreciation

iii. Derecognition

e) Revenue Recognition

Interest income

For all financial assets measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using

the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of

the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a

financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual

terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is

included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Revenue towards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amount of transaction price (net of variable consideration)

allocated to that performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of variable consideration on account of

various discounts and schemes offered by the Company as part of the contract.

Rendering of services
Income from Aircraft operations is recognized based on the terms of agreements as and when the services are rendered and are net of taxes.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic

benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognized.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and

adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of

outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the company's cash management.

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work in progress) is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term

construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,

The company depreciates them separately based on the useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the

carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are

recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 

Borrowing cost relating to acquisition / construction of fixed assets which take substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are

also included to the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future economic

benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance. All other expenses on existing Property, Plant and

Equipments, including day-to-day repair and maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the profit and loss for the

period during which such expenses are incurred.

Expenditure incurred during the period of construction including, all direct and indirect overheads, incidental and related to construction is

carried forward and on completion, the costs are allocated to the respective assets.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the

Companies Act 2013. The Identified component of PPE are depreciated over their useful lives and the remaining components are depreciated over 

the life of the principal assets. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the

period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three

months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

f) Foreign Currency Translation

i) Transactions and balances

ii) Translation

iii) Exchange Differences

g) Employees Retirement Benefits

> Net interest expense or income

iv) Short term employee benefits: They are recognised at an undiscounted amount in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year in which the

related services are received.

i) Defined contribution plan : Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The company has no obligation,

other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an

expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the balance sheet

date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already

paid. 

ii) Defined benefit plan : The company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a separately

administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net

defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are

recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in which they

occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company recognises the following

changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

> Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine settlements; and 

iii) Compensated absences : Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilised within the next twelve months, is treated as short term

employee benefits. The company measures the expected cost of such absence as the additional amount that is expected to pay as a result of the

unused estimate that has accumulated at the reporting date. 

Contract Liability

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an amount

of consideration is due) from the customer. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Company performs obligations under the

contract. The same is disclosed as "Advance from Customers" under Other Current Liabilities.

The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the parent company’s functional currency. The Company determines the

functional currency and items included in the financial statements of are measured using that functional currency. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at functional currency spot rates at the date the transaction first

qualifies for recognition. 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the

reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss with the exception of

those related to acquisition of a PPE which are capitalised and depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Contract Balances

Contract Assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Company performs by

transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for

the earned consideration that is conditional and is disclosed as "Unbilled Revenue" under Other Current Financial Assets.

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional i.e. only the passage of time is required before

payment of consideration is due.



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

h) Investments

i) Borrowing Costs

j) Leases

Company as a Lessee:

Right of Use Assets:

Lease Liability

k) Earnings per share

l) Taxes

i) Current tax 

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss

(either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or

directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax

regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date except for leases with a term of twelve

months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the lease payments are expensed on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made

at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset

or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently

depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the end of the lease term, unless the lessor transfers ownership of

the underlying asset to the lessee by the end of the lease term or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a

purchase option. In that case the right-of-use asset will be depreciated over the useful life of the underlying asset. In addition, the right-of-use

asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments to be paid over the lease term at the commencement date,

discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the company's incremental borrowing rate.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amount of lease liabilities is

remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments or a change in the assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.

The Basic EPS has been computed by dividing the income available to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares

outstanding during the accounting year.  

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted

average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Tax expense comprises of current and deferred tax. Current income tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in

accordance with the Income-Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

substantially enacted, at the reporting date. Provision for current year tax has not been made in absence of taxable profit.

Investments that are readily realizable and intended to be held for not more than a year are classified as current investments. All other

investments are classified as non-current investments. Non-current investments are carried at cost. However, provision for diminution in value is

made to recognize a decline other than temporary in the value of investments.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time

to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in

which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing

cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

At inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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ii) Deferred tax

m) Impairment of non-financial assets

n) Provisions (other than employee benefits), Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for

properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the

amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually as at year end at the CGU level, as appropriate, and when

circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an

outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by

the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation

that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the

amount cannot be made. Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the

risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that

sufficient future taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-

assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred

tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability is

settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

The company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when

annual impairment testing for an asset is required, The Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the

higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an

individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. When

the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market

transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are

corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of The

company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For

longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their

carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except

> When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that affects neither the accounting

profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

> When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction that affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss
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o) Expenditure

Expenditures are accounted net of taxes recoverable, wherever applicable.

p) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date.

>   In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

>   In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company

>   Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

q) Financial instruments 

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

> Debt instruments at amortised cost

> Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

> Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

> Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortised cost

A debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

The Company recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All

financial assets and liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are initially measured at

transaction price.

(b)Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the

principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost

using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and

fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from

impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments

and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value.

External valuers are involved for valuation of unquoted financial assets and financial liabilities, such as contingent consideration. Involvement of

external valuers is decided upon annually by the Management. Selection criteria includes market knowledge, reputation, independence and

whether professional standards are maintained. The Management decides, after discussions with The Company’s external valuers, which valuation

techniques and inputs to use for each case.

At each reporting date, the Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-

assessed as per The Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by

agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The Company , in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with

relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable on a yearly basis.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics

and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another

entity.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,

assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair

value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,

described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

> Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly

observable

>   Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have

occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at

the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability

takes place either:
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Debt instrument at FVTPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Equity investments

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the P&L.

Derecognition

> The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

Impairment of financial assets

b) Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

c) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

> Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and

> All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g. loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank

balances

d) Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of

Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18

Under the simplified approach the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on

lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been a significant

increase in the credit risk said initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used.

ECL is the difference between all contracted cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that

the Company expects to receive, discounted at the original EIR. ECL impairment loss allowance ( or reversal) recognised during the period is

recognised as income / (expense) in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head " Other Expense" in the P&L. 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are

recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However, The Company may transfer the

cumulative gain or loss within equity.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.

removed from the Company’s  balance sheet) when:

> The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full

without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if

and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks

and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated

liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of

the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and

credit risk exposure ;

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost

or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL.

However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting

mismatch’). The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL.

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent

consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity

instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The

Company makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This category generally applies to borrowings. 

Financial guarantee contracts

Derecognition

r) Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it

incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee

contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), adjusted for transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as

per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability

is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such

an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the

respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, options etc. to hedge its foreign currency risks and

interest rate risks, respectively. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the

date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets

when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivative financial instrument are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and

reported with foreign exchange gains/(loss) not within results from operating activities. Changes in fair value and gains/(losses) on settlement of

foreign currency derivative financial instruments relating to borrowings, which have not been designated as hedge are recorded as finance

expense.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable

transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee

contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial

recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of

repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated

as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of recognition,

and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit

risk are recognized in OCI. These gains / loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, The Company may transfer the cumulative gain or

loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The Company has not

designated any financial liability as at FVTPL.

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured

at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through

the EIR amortisation process. 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. 

The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or

as derivatives, as appropriate.
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s) New Standards, interpretations and amendments adopted by the Company

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are consistent with those followed in the preparation of the

Company's annual financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024, except for amendments to the existing Indian Accounting Standards

(Ind AS). The Company has not early adopted any other standard, interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. 

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs notified new standards or amendment to existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)

Rules as issued from time to time.

The Company applied following amendments for the first-time during the current year which are effective from 1 April 2024:

Introduction of Ind AS 117

MCA notified Ind AS 117, a comprehensive standard that prescribe, recognition, measurement and disclosure requirements, to avoid diversities in

practice for accounting insurance contracts and it applies to all companies i.e., to all "insurance contracts" regardless of the issuer. However, Ind

AS 117 is not applicable to the entities which are insurance companies registered with IRDAI.

Additionally, amendments have been made to Ind AS 101, First-time Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards, Ind AS 103, Business Combinations,

Ind AS 105, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, Ind AS 107, Financial Instruments: Disclosures, Ind AS 109, Financial

Instruments and Ind AS 115, Revenue from Contracts with Customers to align them with Ind AS 117. The amendments also introduce enhanced

disclosure requirements, particularly in Ind AS 107, to provide clarity regarding financial instruments associated with insurance contracts.

Amendments to Ind AS 116 -Lease liability in a sale and leaseback

The amendments require an entity to recognise lease liability including variable lease payments which are not linked to index or a rate in a way it

does not result into gain on Right of use asset it retains.

The Company has reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluation has determined that these amendments do not have a

significant impact on the Company's Financial Statements
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3 Note 3(a) - Property, plant and equipment

 ₹ in Lacs

Computer 

Hardware

Office 

Equipments

Plant & 

Machinery

Furniture & 

Fixtures
Vehicles Aircraft Total

Cost

As at April 01, 2023 30.52                7.58               0.87                1.86                49.66            30,614.26          30,704.75        

Additions 6.73                    9.07                0.24                 0.38                -                 35,175.54             35,191.96          

Deductions/Adjustment (2.45)                  -                  -                  -                 -                       (2.45)                  

As at March 31, 2024 34.80               16.65             1.11                  2.24                49.66            65,789.80          65,894.26       

Additions 15.85                  14.39              2.50                  6.97                 -                 287.71                  327.42               

Deductions/Adjustment -                     -                  -                  -                 -                       -                     

As at March 31, 2025 50.65                31.04             3.61                 9.21                49.66            66,077.51           66,221.68        

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 17.12                 4.32               0.05                1.25                10.30            14,223.94           14,256.98        

Depreciation for the year 7.80                    2.31                 0.09                 0.10                 6.21                 3,534.22              3,550.73            

Deductions/(Adjustment) (2.42)                  -                  -                   -                  -                 -                       (2.42)                 

As at March 31, 2024 22.50                6.63               0.14                1.35                16.51             17,758.16            17,805.29        

Depreciation for the year 9.86                   5.44                0.21                  0.62                6.21                 5,175.97               5,198.30            

Deductions/(Adjustment) -                     ` -                   -                  -                 -                     

As at March 31, 2025 32.36                12.07             0.35                1.97                22.72             22,934.13           23,003.59        

Net Block

As at March 31, 2024 12.30                10.02             0.97                0.89               33.15             48,031.64          48,088.97       

As at March 31, 2025 18.29                18.97             3.26                7.24                26.94            43,143.38           43,218.09        

3(b)Note 3(b) Right-of-use 

assets 

 ₹ in Lacs

Particulars Aircraft

Total

Cost

As at April 01, 2023 39,157.90           

Addition during the year -                      

Deductions/Adjustment -                      

As at March 31, 2024 39,157.90         

Addition during the year 21,533.75            

Deductions/Adjustment -                      

As at March 31, 2025 60,691.65         

Accumulated Depreciation

As at April 01, 2023 3,263.16             

Depreciation for the year 3,263.16             

Deductions/Adjustment -                      

As at March 31, 2024 6,526.32           

Depreciation for the year 5,147.85             

Deductions/Adjustment -                      

As at March 31, 2025 11,674.17           

Net Block

As at March 31, 2024 32,631.58         

As at March 31, 2025 49,017.49         

Note : 

Note 3(c) Capital Work-in-Progress  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars

Opening -                     -                  

Additions 20.89               -                  

Capitised during the  year -                     -                  

20.89               -                

Capital Work-in-Progress (CWIP) Aging Schedule as at March 31, 2025

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years
More than 3 

years

Projects in progress 20.89                 -                  -                   -                  20.89             

Total 20.89               -                -                  -                 20.89            

Particulars

CWIP

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Total

During the current year, The Company has entered into three Aircraft lease agreement with Udanvat Leasing IFSC Limited for the period of 5 years.

(Refer Note 36)

March 31, 2025
March 31, 

2024
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4 Other Financial assets

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Security and other deposits

Considered good                     340.20 258.71                    -                                

Lease Deposit                       457.17 428.69                  -                                -                                

Other receivable                               -   -                         37.77                              -                                

Advances to employees                               -   -                         20.37                             23.72                             

797.37                     687.40                  58.14                             23.72                             

5 Other Assets March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non Current  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise Stated)

Capital Advances 3,131.15                          -                                

(A) 3,131.15                         -                                

Others

Deposited against Demand in dispute -                                35.00                            

(B) -                                35.00                            

(A+B) 3,131.15                         35.00                            

Current March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Advances recoverable other than in cash  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Unsecured, considered good 39.60                            62.85                            

(A) 39.60                            62.85                            

Others

Prepaid Expenses 329.46                          435.88                          

Balance wih Govt. Authorities 42.54                             1,614.91                        

Accrued revenue (Contract Assets) 2,384.82                       -                                

(B) 2,756.82                       2,050.79                      

(A + B) 2,796.42                       2,113.64                       

6 Inventories (At lower of cost and Net realisable value) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Stores and spares 1,203.20                        869.56                         

1,203.20                       869.56                         

7 Trade Receivables March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

(unsecured, unless otherwise stated)  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

- Unsecured, considered good 7,206.08                       13,897.02                     

- Credit impaired 10.32                             10.32                             

7,216.40                       13,907.34                     

Less: Allowances for expected credit losses (10.32)                            (10.32)                            

7,206.08                       13,897.02                     

Trade receivable ageing as on March 31, 2025 is as below  ₹ in Lacs

Less than 6 

months

6 Months - 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

1
             0.47        2,847.19             105.72                   2,818.69                  1,444.33                         7,216.40 

2                  -                     -                       -                                 -                                -                                       -                               (10.32)

             0.47       2,847.19             105.72                  2,818.69                 1,444.33                                     -                          7,206.08 

Trade receivable ageing as on March 31, 2024 is as below  ₹ in Lacs

Less than 6 

months

6 Months - 1 

year
1-2 Years 2-3 Years

More than 3 years

1
      5,974.74       4,228.91         1,528.40                     2,175.27                              -                                  0.02                       13,907.34 

2                  -                     -                       -                                 -                                -                               (10.32)

     5,974.74       4,228.91         1,528.40                    2,175.27                              -                                  0.02                      13,897.02 

Note : 

i

ii

Due date is computed considering the credit period as per the terms of the agreement wherever specified, else the same is computed from the invoice date.

In the previous financial year, the company has reversed a provision for doubtful debts amounting to Rs. 296.31 Lacs against which Rs. 296.31 Lacs has been written as

bad debts in the company's books of accounts. 

Undisputed Trade receivables - 

Considered good

Provision for Credit Impaired

Total

Total

Sr 

No
No Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt

Total

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Non-current portion Current portion

Sr 

No
No Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of receipt

TotalParticulars

Undisputed Trade receivables - 

Considered good

Provision for Credit Impaired

Particulars
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8 Cash and cash equivalents March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Balances with banks:

Balance in current account 631.05                           782.15                           

631.05                          782.15                          

9 Share capital March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Authorised

4,500.00                      4,500.00                      

4,500.00                      4,500.00                     

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares

4,500.00                      4,500.00                      

4,500.00                      4,500.00                     

Notes:

(a) Reconciliation of the number of the shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the year:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Number  ₹ in Lacs Number  ₹ in Lacs

At the beginning of the year 45,000,000            4,500.00               45,000,000                 4,500.00                      

Changes during the year -                          -                         -                                -                                

At the end of the year 45,000,000           4,500.00              45,000,000                 4,500.00                     

(b) Terms/rights attached to equity shares:

(c) Shares held by parent company

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

4,500                            4,500                            

(d) Details of shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity shares of ₹ 10 each fully paid

Number % Holding Number % Holding

45,000,000            100.00% 45,000,000                 100.00%

(e) Details of Equity Shares held by promoters at the end of the year March 31, 2025

Sr 

No

No of shares at the 

beginning of the 

year

No of Shares at 

the end of the year
% of Total Shares

% Change during the 

year

1 45,000,000           45,000,000          100.00%
-

Total 45,000,000           45,000,000         100.00% -                                

(f) Details of Equity Shares held by promoters at the end of the year March 31, 2024

Sr 

No

No of shares at the 

beginning of the 

year

No of Shares at 

the end of the year
% of Total Shares

% Change during the 

year

1 45,000,000           45,000,000          100.00%
-

Total 45,000,000           45,000,000         100.00% -                                

10 Instruments entirely equity in nature March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Unsecured Perpetual Debt

- At the beginning of the year 30,000.00                    30,000.00                   

- Issued/(Redeemed) during the year -                                -                                

- At the end of the year 30,000.00                   30,000.00                   

Note : 

Promotor Name

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company and its 

nominee

Promotor Name

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company and its 

nominee

These securities are perpetual in nature with no fixed maturity or redemption period and are callable only at the option of the Company. These securities are issued with

coupon of 7.50 % but payable at the option of the Company though in case Company decide to declare dividend, the interest will be paid. As these securities are

perpetual in nature and the Company does not have any redemption obligation, these are classified as 'equity'.

Out of equity shares issued by the company, shares held by its parent company is as below:

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company and its nominee

4,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each (4,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each as at March 31, 2024)

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited, the parent company and its

nominee

4,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each (4,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each as at March 31, 2024)

4,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each (4,50,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹10 each as at March 31, 2024)

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ₹ 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential

amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders
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11 Other Equity March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

(i) Equity Component of Borrowing

- Opening balance 1,793.52                         1,793.52                        

- Addition / (Reduction) during the year -                                -                                

- Closing Balance (A) 1,793.52                        1,793.52                       

(ii) Retained Earnings

- Opening balance (3,437.76)                       (4,286.49)                     

- Loss / Profit for the year 1,204.30                        889.88                         

- Other Comprehensive loss 69.69                            (41.15)                            

(B) (2,163.77)                       (3,437.76)                      

(A+B) (370.25)                         (1,644.24)                     

Note:

12 Lease Liabilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Lease Liabilities 47,985.49               34,450.02             6,593.97                        2,619.82                       

47,985.49              34,450.02             6,593.97                       2,619.82                       

(a) Future minimum lease payments under leases together with the present value of the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

 ₹ in Lacs

Within one 

year

After one year 

but not later 

than five 

years

More than five 

years

Total minimum 

lease payments

Less: Amounts 

representing finance 

charges

Present value of 

minimum lease 

payments

9,241.53      35,798.97      19,856.19                64,896.69             (10,317.23)                      54,579.46                    

2,647.56      6,238.53        1,431.14                   10,317.23               

6,593.97      29,560.44     18,425.05               54,579.46              

4,023.41      17,124.96       23,927.44               45,075.81              (8,005.97)                      37,069.84                    

1,403.59      4,437.22        2,165.16                  8,005.97               

2,619.82      12,687.74       21,762.28                37,069.84             

(b) The movement in Lease liabilities during the period ended  ₹ in Lacs

Aircraft 

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

37,069.84                     38,906.01                    

20,653.58                     -                                

1,206.27                        688.39                         

1,923.54                        1,367.05                        

(6,273.77)                       (3,891.61)                      

Closing Balance 54,579.46                     37,069.84                    

(c) Amount Recognised in Profit & Loss Account during the year

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

5,147.85                        3,263.16                        

1,923.54                        1,367.05                        

1,206.27                        688.39                         

8,277.66                       5,318.60                      

(d) Amounts recognized in statement of cash flows

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Cash flows from financing activities

Payment of Lease Liabilities (including interest paid) (6,273.77)                       (3,891.61)                      

(6,273.77)                       (3,891.61)                      

Particulars

Particular

Opening Balance

Particular

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets

Particular

Interest on Finance Lease

Exchange difference

Additions during the year

Exchange difference

Finance charges

Payments of Lease Liabilities

Present Value of MLP

March 31, 2024

Minimum Lease Payments

Finance charge allocated to future periods

Present Value of MLP

Non-current portion Current portion

March 31, 2025

Minimum Lease Payments

Finance charge allocated to future periods

The portion of profits not distributed among the shareholders are termed as retained earnings. The company may utilize the retained earnings for making investments for

future growth and expansion plans, for the purpose of generating higher returns for the shareholders or for any other specific purpose, as approved by the Board of

Directors of the Company.

Aircrafts have been taken on lease by the Company. The terms of lease rent are for the period ranging from 5 years to 12 years depending on the lease agreement with 

the lessor. There is no contingent rent, no sub-leases and no restrictions imposed by the lease arrangements.  
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13 Provisions
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Non-current  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Provision for gratuity                      130.84 174.18 -                                -                                

Provision for compensated absences                        68.74 126.11 114.12                            59.06                            

199.58                    300.29                  114.12                            59.06                           

Note :

14 Borrowings March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Inter Corporate Deposit 9,401.46                 20,307.46             -                                -                                

Current Maturity of Non Current Long term borrowings 225.00                          -                                

9,401.46                 20,307.46             225.00                          -                                

The above amount includes

Unsecured borrowings 9,401.46                 20,307.46             225.00                          -                                

Total borrowings 9,401.46                 20,307.46             225.00                          -                                

Note :

15  Trade Payables March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 76.66                             27.82                             

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1,289.99                        2,297.08                       

1,366.65                       2,324.90                      

Trade payable ageing as on March 31, 2025 is as below  ₹ in Lacs

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

1 75.31            1.35                -                         -                                76.66                            

2 455.39        832.90          1.60                         0.10                        -                                1,289.99                       

530.70        834.25          1.60                         0.10                       -                                1,366.65                       

Trade payable ageing as on March 31, 2024 is as below  ₹ in Lacs

Less than 1 

year
1-2 years 2-3 Years More than 3 years

1 28.20           -                 -                          -                         -                                28.20                            

2 1,330.24      966.21           0.25                         -                                2,296.70                       

1,358.44     966.21           0.25                         -                         -                                2,324.90                      

Note : 

16 Other financial liabilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Capital creditors, retention money and other payable 469.51                           7.31                                

Interest accrued but not due 1,085.51                        1,080.30                       

Employees Payable (refer note 1) 450.32                          151.36                           

Deposits from customers 6,000.00                      5,170.00                       

8,005.34                      6,408.97                      

Note:-

17 Other Liabilities

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Statutory liabilities (inclusive PF, TDS, GST,PT) 403.05                          192.75                           

Advance from Customers 0.55                               0.40                              

403.60                         193.15                           

Current portion

Current portion

No trade or other receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person nor any trade or other receivable are

due from firms or private companies in which any director is a partner, a director or a member.

Particulars Not Due

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Outstanding for following periods from due date of Payment

Total

MSME

Others

Total

Total

MSME

Others

Total

(1) Employee payable are presented from trade payable to other financial liabilities (current) for better presentation which does not have any impact to net profits or on

financial position presented in the financial statements.

Non-current portion

Sr 

No
Particulars Not Due

Sr 

No

Due date is computed considering the credit period as per the terms of the agreement wherever specified, else the same is computed from the invoice date.

Bifurcation of provision for compensated absences & gratuity into current and non-current is based on Independent Actuarial valuation.

Inter corporate deposit Total of ` 9,626.46 (Rs 225 Lacs & 9,401.46 Lacs) received from Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Ltd., the parent company. The rate of

interest is 7.5% which is payable annually within 2 months from the end of financial year. The loan agreement of o/s Loan of ` 225 Lacs is valid till March 31, 2026 and The

loan agreement of o/s Loan of ` 9,401.46 is valid till July 01, 2033 which can be renewed or extended form time to time for such further period decided upon mutual

understanding between both the parties of agreement.

Current portion

Non-current portion Current portion
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18 Revenue from Operations March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Revenue from Contract with Customers

Income from Aircraft Operations 30,791.04                     22,352.88                     

Other Operating Income 288.05                          

31,079.09                     22,352.88                    

(a) Reconciliation of revenue recognised with contract price: March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Revenue as per contracted price 28,406.22                     22,352.88                     

Adjustments:

Discounts -                                -                                

Change In Contract Assets 2,384.82                       -                                

Change In Contract Liabilities -                                -                                

Revenue from Contract with Customers 30,791.04                     22,352.88                    

19 Other Income March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Interest Income on

Income Tax Refund 39.67                             12.32                             

Others 16.62                             15.43                             

Unclaimed liabilities / excess provision written back 0.22                               7.61                               

56.51                             35.36                            

20 Operating Expenses March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Aircraft Operating Expenses

Aircraft fuel 2,183.99                        1,828.08                       

Airport charges 2,368.91                        1,634.82                       

Aircraft hiring charges 108.06 214.44                          

Aircraft running & operating expenses 385.12 413.84                          

Pilot hiring charges 36.62 96.54                            

5,082.70                       4,187.72                       

21 Employee benefit expense March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Salaries and wages 2,133.45                        1,439.26                       

Contribution to provident and other funds 85.82                             64.90                            

Gratuity (refer note 32) 56.92                             31.37                             

Staff welfare expenses 57.72                              32.87                             

2,333.91                        1,568.40                      

22 Finance Costs March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Interest Expenses:

Interest on Inter corporate Deposits(ICD) 1,206.12                        1,151.83                         

Interest on Lease Liability 1,923.54                        1,367.05                        

Other Borrowing Cost:

Bank and other finance charges 13.45                             13.24                             

3,143.11                        2,532.12                       

23 Other Expenses March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Legal & Professional expenses 314.79                           213.73                           

Travelling and Conveyance 555.97                           324.73                           

Stores & Spares consumed 958.37                           518.26                          

Repair & Maintenance expenses:-

Aircraft 5,043.33                       3,900.67                       

Others 20.53                             11.16                              

Insurance expenses 649.05                          560.17                           

Rent expenses 91.74                             56.63                            

Communication Expenses 13.80                             12.10                             

Rates and Taxes - Permission & License Fees 43.57                             28.46                            

Printing and Stationery Expenses 6.39                               5.67                               

Security expenses 11.10                              4.55

Office expenses 47.70                             26.01

Electricity expenses 1.60                               1.73                                

Payment to auditors (refer note (a) below) 4.33                               1.56                               

Charity & Donations (refer note (b) below) 23.00                            22.00                            

Loss on sale of PPE (Net) -                                0.02                              

Miscellaneous expenses 6.21                                2.35                               

7,791.48                        5,689.80                     
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(a) Note: 1 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Payment to Auditor  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

As auditor:

Audit fees 4.00                              1.25                               

Certification & Others 0.33                               0.31                               

4.33                               1.56                               

(b) Details of CSR Expenses March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 22.72                              22.00                            

Particulars
In cash 

(` in Lacs)

Yet to be 

paid in cash 

Total 

(` in Lacs)

Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2025

(i) Construction/acquisition of any Asset -                         -                                -                                

(ii) On Purpose other than (i) above 23.00                     -                                23.00                            

Amount spent during the year ended March 31, 2024

(i) Construction/acquisition of any Asset -                         -                                -                                

(ii) On Purpose other than (i) above 22.00                     -                                22.00                            

(c) Below are nature of CSR activities

Nature
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Preventive and Community health 18.79                             22.00                            

Environmental Sustainability 3.54                               

Admin Cost 0.67                               

(d) Detail of related party Transactions

Nature
For the year ended 

March 31, 2025

For the year ended 

March 31, 2024

Contribution / Donation to related party ( refer note 36) 23.00                            22.00                            

24 Deferred Tax Assets (net) March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities :

Property, Plant & Equipment 6,840.65                       5,465.92                       

Total 6,840.65                      5,465.92                      

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets :

(i) Unabsorbed depreciation 5,347.58                        4,247.72                        

(ii) Unpaid leave encashment 32.93                             46.60                            

(iii) Unpaid Gratuity 14.28                             43.84                            

(iv) Unpaid Bonus 46.02                            10.74                             

(v) Lease 1,399.84                        1,117.02                         

Total 6,840.65                      5,465.92                      

Net Deferred Tax Assets to recognised -                                -                                

Note : 

(a) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Profit / (loss) before taxes                         1,204.30                          889.88 

Income tax expense calculated at  25.168%                            303.10                            223.96 

Unrecognised tax impact of OCI (expenses)                               17.54                             (10.36)

Permanent Differences 5.79                                                              5.54 

Effect of b/f unabsorbed depreciation utilised                           (326.43) (219.14)                          

Temporary difference on which deferred tax not created                                     -   

Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss -                                -                                

The Company has recognised the deferred tax assets on unabsorbed depreciation only to the extent of deferred tax liability and hence as per IndAS 12, net deferred tax

assets as on March 31, 2025 is ₹ 128.51 lacs (March 31, 2024 ₹ 720.00 lacs) has not been recognised on prudent basis.
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(b) Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2025  ₹ in Lacs

Opening Balance as 

at 1st April, 2024

Recognised in 

profit and Loss

Recognised in other 

comprehensive income

Closing balance as at 

31st March, 2025

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities :

Property, Plant & Equipment 5,465.92                 1,374.73                 -                                6,840.65                      

Total 5,465.92                 1,374.73                 -                                6,840.65                      

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets :

(i) Unabsorbed depreciation 4,247.72                  (1,099.86)              -                                5,347.58                       

(ii) Unpaid leave encashment 46.60                      13.67                      -                                32.93                            

(iii) Unpaid Gratuity 43.84                      29.56                     -                                14.28                             

(iv) Unpaid Bonus 10.74                       (35.28)                    -                                46.02                            

(v) Lease 1,117.02                   (282.82)                  -                                1,399.84                       

Total 5,465.92                 (1,374.73)                -                                6,840.65                      

-                          -                         -                                -                                

Note :

(c) Movement in deferred tax assets/liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2024  ₹ in Lacs

Opening Balance as 

at 1st April, 2023

Recognised in 

profit and Loss

Recognised in other 

comprehensive income

Closing balance as at 

31st March, 2024

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities :

Property, Plant & Equipment 3,906.28                                  1,559.64                                     -   5,465.92                       

Total 3,906.28                1,559.64                -                                5,465.92                      

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets :

(i) Unabsorbed depreciation 3,079.14                                  (1,168.58)                                     -   4,247.72                        

(ii) Unpaid leave encashment 33.72                                            (12.88)                                     -   46.60                            

(iii) Unpaid Gratuity 25.27                                            (18.57)                                     -   43.84                            

(iv) Unpaid Bonus 8.59                                                (2.15)                                     -   10.74                             

(v) Lease 759.56                                       (357.46)                                     -   1,117.02                         

Total 3,906.28                (1,559.64)              -                                5,465.92                      

-                          -                         -                                -                                

(d) Unrecognised deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

 ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

Unabsorbed depreciation 128.51                            1,441.19                        

128.51                           1,441.19                       

Assessment March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Year  ₹ in Lacs  ₹ in Lacs

2013-14 Unabsorbed Depreciation                        4,029.88                        4,029.88 

2014-15 Unabsorbed Depreciation                         5,546.65                        5,546.65 

2015-16 Unabsorbed Depreciation                         2,585.42                        2,585.42 

2016-17 Unabsorbed Depreciation 2,379.56                        2,379.56                       

2024-25 Unabsorbed Depreciation 4,131.54                         5,196.72                        

18,673.06                     19,738.24                     

25 Earnings per share

 UOM 
 As at

March 31, 2025 

 As at

March 31, 2024 

Profit  attributable to equity shareholders of the company   ₹ in Lacs                         1,204.30                           889.88 

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year  Nos.                   45,000,000                  45,000,000 

Face Value of Equity Share   ₹                                    10                                    10 

Basic and Diluted earning per share (in ₹) (face value of equity shares ₹ 10 each)   ₹                                2.68                                1.98 

Particulars

Deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred

tax assets have been recognised are attributable to the following :

Nature

Particulars

Deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent, the same can be adjusted against deferred tax liability. Hence, there is nil impact in P & L statement.
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26 Financial Instruments, Fair Value Measurements, Financial Risk and Capital Management

(a) Financial Assets and Liabilities

(b) Fair Value Hierarchy

Level-1 

Level-2 

Level-3

(c) Disclosure of fair value measurement and fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities

i)  The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2025 is as follows :  ₹ in Lacs

Note

 Fair Value through

other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 Fair Value through

Profit & Loss 
Amortised Cost Total

Trade receivables 7                                                   -   -                         7,206.08                       7,206.08                       

Cash and cash equivalents 8                                                   -   -                         631.05                           631.05                          

Others financial assets 4                                                   -   -                         855.51                           855.51                           

                              -                                -                          8,692.64                       8,692.64 

 Lease Liabilities 12                                                 -   -                         54,579.46                     54,579.46                     

 Borrowings 14                                                 -   -                         9,401.46                       9,401.46                       

 Trade  payables 15                                                 -   -                         1,366.65                        1,366.65                       

 Other financial liabilities 16                                                 -   -                         8,005.34                       8,005.34                      

                              -                                -                         73,352.91                       73,352.91 

ii)  The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of March 31, 2024 is as follows :  ₹ in Lacs

Note

 Fair Value through

other 

Comprehensive 

Income 

 Fair Value through

Profit & Loss 
Amortised Cost Total

Trade receivables 7                                                   -   -                         13,897.02                      13,897.02                     

Cash and cash equivalents 8                                                   -   -                         782.15                           782.15                           

Others financial assets 4                                                   -   -                         711.12                             711.12                            

                              -   -                         15,390.29                     15,390.29                    

 Lease Laibilities 12                                                 -   -                         37,069.84                     37,069.84                    

 Borrowings 14                                                 -   -                         20,307.46                     20,307.46                    

 Trade  payables 15                                                 -   -                         2,324.90                       2,324.90                       

 Other financial liabilities 16                                                 -   -                         6,408.97                       6,408.97                      

                              -                                -                          66,111.17                        66,111.17 

(d) Financial Instruments and Financial Risk Review

i) Market risk

Total

The company's Financial Risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's risk management activities are subject to

the management direction and control under the framework of Risk Management Policy as approved by the Board of Directors of the Company. The Management ensures

appropriate risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance

with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

In the ordinary course of business, the Company is mainly exposed to risks resulting from interest rate movements (Interest rate risk) and exchange rate fluctuation

(Currency risk) collectively referred as Market Risk, Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk and other price risks such as equity price risk. The Company's senior management oversees

the management of these risks.

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three

types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Financial Liabilities

Total

Particulars 

Financial Assets

Total

Financial Liabilities

Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly

(i.e. derived from prices).

Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation model based

on the assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on

available market data.

The following tables summarises carrying amounts of financial instruments by their categories and their levels in fair value hierarchy for each year end presented.

Particulars 

Financial Assets

Total

The Company's principal financial assets include trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents and other receivables. The Company's principal financial liabilities other

than derivatives comprise of borrowings, provisions, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company's operations and

projects. 

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either observable or unobservable and consists of the

following three levels:

Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
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 ₹ in Lacs

Year ended        March 

31, 2025

Year ended        March 

31, 2024

1

                                 1.57                              26.73 

                                    -                                26.83 

                                    -                                  0.01 

The details of foreign currency exposures those are not hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as under:

Nature Amount Amount

 Amt in ₹  Amt in ₹

(In Lacs) (In Lacs) (In Lacs) (In Lacs)

Security Deposit USD 654.10                    7.65                        638.26                          7.65                               

Trade and other payables USD 904.53                    10.58                     2,034.96                       24.40                            

Trade payables EUR -                          -                         2,682.76                        29.85                            

Trade payables SGD -                          -                         1.34                                0.02                              

Total 1,558.63                 5,357.32                        

Closing Rate as at March 31, 2025 Closing Rate as at March 31, 2024

INR / USD 85.4750     INR / USD 83.4050                

INR / EUR 92.0900    INR / EUR 89.8775                 

INR / SGD 63.7100 INR / SGD 61.7350                 

The Company do not have any price risk.

ii) Credit risk

 ₹ in Lacs

 As at

March 31, 2025 

 As at

March 31, 2024 

10.32                             306.63                          

-                                (296.31)                         

10.32                             10.32                             

iii) Liquidity risk

Changes during the year

Closing Balance of Credit Losses

Liquidity risk refers the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company monitors its risk of

shortage of funds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of its financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows from

operations. The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner and to manage its

capital structure. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of various types of borrowings and continuous support from

holding company.

Credit risk from balances with banks, is managed by the Company's treasury team in accordance with the Company's risk management policy. Cash and cash equivalents

and Bank deposits are placed with banks having good reputation, good past track record and high quality credit rating.

Trade Receivables

Credit risk on receivables is limited as the services are provided majorly to the companies within the group. Considering the given nature, company is not exposed to any

external credit risk.

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables

Particulars

Opening Balance of Credit Losses

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is

exposed to changes in interest rates due to its financing, investing and cash management activities.The Company's risk management activities are subject to the

management, direction and control of Central Treasury Team of the Adani Group under the framework of Risk Management Policy for interest rate risk. The Group’s

central treasury team ensures appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company through appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are

identified, measured and mitigated in accordance with the Group’s policies and risk objectives. The compnay doesnt have any variable rate of borrowings during the year.

Hence the company is not bearing any interest rate risk on its borrowings. As the Company's borrowings solely consist of inter corporate deposits with fixed rates

throughout the year, it does not face any interest rate risk related to its borrowings.

c) Price risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty or customer will default on its contractual obligations resulting in a loss to the Company. Financial instruments that are

subject to credit risk principally consist of Trade and Other Receivables, Cash & Cash Equivalents and Other Financial Assets. The carrying amounts of financial assets

represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

Credit risk encompasses both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk is controlled by

analysing credit limits and creditworthiness of counter parties on continuous basis with appropriate approval mechanism for sanction of credit limits. 

Other Financial Assets

INR / EUR - by 1%

INR / SGD - by 1%

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Foreign 

Currency

Foreign 

Currency

Foreign 

Currency

The sensitivity of profit or loss due to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from non-derivative foreign currency denominated financial instruments. The same is

summarized as below:

Sr.  No. Particulars

Impact on profit before tax for the 

USD / EUR / SGD Sensitivity

INR / USD – by 1%

a) Foreign currency risk

Exchange rate movements, have an impact on the Company’s operating results. The Company manages its foreign currency risk by entering into suitable foreign

exchange contracts in stable currency environment on foreign currency borrowing.
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i) Maturity profile of financial liabilities:

As at March 31, 2025 Note
 Less than 1 

year 
1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total Carrying Value

Lease Liabilities 12                 9,241.53        35,798.97                19,856.19              64,896.69                    54,579.46                     

Borrowings (incl. current maturities) 14                 225.00           -                                          9,401.46 9,626.46                       9,626.46                      

Trade payables 15                 1,366.65        -                          -                         1,366.65                        1,366.65                       

Interest accrued but not due 16                 1,102.00        2,822.00                 2,998.00               6,922.00                       1,085.51                        

Other financial liabilities 16                 6,919.83        -                          -                         6,919.83                        6,919.83                       

Total 18,855.01                    38,620.97               32,255.65                       89,731.63                       73,577.91 

As at March 31, 2024 Note
 Less than 1 

year 
1 to 5 years Over 5 years Total Carrying Value

Lease Liabilities 12                 4,023.41        17,124.96                23,927.44              45,075.81                      37,069.84                    

Borrowings (incl. current maturities) 14                 -                                10,000.00 10,307.46              20,307.46                     20,307.46                    

Trade payables 15                 2,324.90                                      -   -                         2,324.90                       2,324.90                       

Interest accrued but not due 16                 1,523.06                          3,842.30 3,287.09                8,652.45                       1,080.30                       

Other financial liabilities 16                 5,328.67                                      -   -                         5,328.67                        5,328.67                        

Total      13,200.04                30,967.26               37,521.99                      81,689.29                        66,111.17 

(e) Capital Management

 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 

Net debt (total debt less cash and cash equivalents)                         8,995.41                        19,525.31 

Total capital                        34,129.75                       32,855.76 

Total capital and net debt                        43,125.16                       52,381.07 

Gearing ratio (%) 20.86% 37.28%

27 Disclosure under Para 44A as set out in Ind AS 7 on cash flow statements under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2017  (as amended)

 ₹ in Lacs

Effect due to 

changes in foreign 

exchange rates

Addition of Lease 

Obligation

Lease Liabilities 12                 37,069.84                       (6,273.77)                  1,206.27                         22,577.12                      54,579.46 

Inter Corporate Deposits 14                 20,307.46                   (10,681.00)                              -                                       -                          9,626.46 

Total 57,377.30      (16,954.77)              1,206.27                22,577.12                      64,205.92                    

Effect due to 

changes in foreign 

exchange rates

Addition of Lease 

Obligation

Lease Liabilities 12                 38,906.01                      (3,891.61)                    688.39                          1,367.05                      37,069.84 

Inter Corporate Deposits 14                 3,308.46                      16,999.00                              -                                       -                        20,307.46 

Total 42,214.47      13,107.39                688.39                  1,367.05                        57,377.30                     

Particulars of Liabilities arising from Financing 

activity
 Note 

As at 

April 1, 2023

Net 

Cash flows

Non Cash Changes

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Management monitors the return on capital, as well as the level of dividends to equity shareholders. In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capital

management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure

requirements.

The company does not have any external borrowings. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in the

objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31st March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024.

Particulars of Liabilities arising from Financing 

activity
 Note 

As at 

April 1, 2024

Net 

Cash flows

Non Cash Changes

As at March 31, 2025

The tables below analyze the company’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities (on undiscounted basis):

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued capital and all other equity reserves attributable to the equity shareholders of the

Company. The primary objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain an optimal capital

structure so as to maximize shareholder value.The capital structure of the Company is based on management’s judgment of its strategic and day-to-day needs with a

focus on total equity so as to maintain creditors and market confidence.

The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital and other strategic investments.



Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

28

 ₹ in Lacs

Sr 

No
Particulars

 Year ended

March 31, 2025 

 Year ended

March 31, 2024 

1 Principal amount and interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year.

Principal                              76.66                              27.82 

Interest                                     -                                       -   

2                                     -                                       -   

3                                     -                                       -   

4                                     -                                       -   

5

                                    -                                       -   

29 Contingent liabilities not provided for

Information required to be furnished as per Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) and Schedule III of the

Companies Act, 2013 for the year ended March 31, 2025. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company and relied upon by auditors.

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16, of the Micro Small and Medium Enterprise

Development Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during

each accounting year
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond

the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under Micro Small and Medium Enterprise

Development Act, 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006.

The company imported an aircraft for providing non-scheduled charter operations without paying duty. The Commissioner of Customs issued a show cause notice,

proposing to recover the customs duty of `1467.16 Lacs along with the appropriate rate of interest and imposition of fines and penalty, alleging that the aircraft was not

being used for its intended purpose. The Commissioner confirmed the aforesaid demand with interest & fine and imposed equivalent amount of penalty without

considering the company's submissions. The Company provided a Bank Guarantee of `1481.00 Lacs to the Customs department. The company appealed to CESTAT

Ahmedabad, which, in April 2023, set aside the demand, fine, and penalty. The Customs department has challenged CESTAT's decision before the Gujarat High Court, and

the matter is currently pending for hearing.

The Office of the Commissioner of Customs issued a Show Cause Notice demanding `1832.81 Lacs of duty along with the appropriate rate of interest and imposition of

fine & penalty, for the import of Bombardier Challenger CL-600 under a Non-Scheduled Operation Permit (NSOP). The Company provided a Bank Guarantee of ` 1832.82 

Lacs to the Customs department. However, the Commissioner of Customs has deferred adjudicating the show cause notice pending the Gujarat High Court's decision on a

similar case mentioned at Sr. No. 1 above.

A Bank Guarantee worth 2680.00 was provided to the Deputy Commissioner of Customs for the import of Aircraft Legacy 650 under Notification No. 12/2012, Sr. No.

453, Customs Condition No. 77, as notified by the Government of India. However, the Customs Department is not finalizing the assessment of the Bill of Entry pending the

Gujarat High Court's decision on a similar case mentioned at Sr. No. 1 above.

The Hon’ble Supreme Court (SC) has passed a judgement dated 28th February 2019, relating to components of salary structure to be included while computing the

contribution to provident fund under the Employees Provident Fund Act, 1952. The Company’s Management is of the view that there is considerable uncertainty around

the timing, manner and extent in which the judgment will be interpreted and applied by the regulatory authorities. The Company will continue to assess any further

developments in this matter for the implications on financial statements, if any. Currently, the Company has not considered any impact in these financial statements.

The management is reasonably confident that no liability will devolve on the Company. Company has considered it as remote liability.
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30 Capital & other commitments:   ₹ in Lacs 

 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 

                         7,827.62                              45.33 

31 Segment information

32 Employee Benefits

a) Contributions to Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expense for the year are as under:

 ₹ in Lacs

 For the year ended 

 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 

Provident Fund                              85.82                             64.90 

Total                              85.82                             64.90 

b) 

Interest Risk

Longevity Risk

Salary Risk

Gratuity

i) Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 226.66                          149.20                          

Current service cost 42.72                             22.66                            

Past Service Cost

Interest cost 17.97                              12.38                             

Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from:

 - change in demographic assumptions (57.21)                             43.84                            

 - change in financial assumptions (16.63)                            2.71                                

 - experience variance 4.15                                (5.40)                             

Benefits paid (53.69)                           (14.18)                            

Liability Transfer In 23.13                              15.46                             

Liability Transfer Out -                                

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 187.09                          226.66                         

The company has a defined gratuity plan. Under the plan every employee who has completed at least five year of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary

(last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. The scheme is funded with Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Ltd. (TATA AIA Life) in form of a qualifying insurance

policy for future payment of gratuity to the employees.

Liability in respect of Gratuity is determined based on actuarial valuation done by actuary as at the balance sheet date. Each year, the management reviews the level of

funding in the gratuity fund. Such review includes the asset - liability matching strategy. The management decides its contribution based on the results of this review.

The management aims to keep annual contributions relatively stable at a level such that no plan deficits (based on valuation performed) will arise.

These post-employment benefit plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields at the end of

the reporting period on Government securities. A decrease in yields will increase the fund liabilities and vice-versa.

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during

and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in salary 

of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for

The company is in the business of providing aviation services under the category of Non-Scheduled Operator. Considering the nature of the company's business and

operation, as well as, based on review of operating results by chief operating decision maker there is only one reportable segment in accordance with the requirements of

Ind-As 108 -" Operating Segments" Prescribed under companies (Indian accounting standard rules) 2015. Accordingly, the segment revenue, results, segment assets,

segment and liabilities are all as is reflected in the financial statement themselves as at and for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

The Company has made provision in the accounts for Gratuity based on actuarial valuation. The particulars under the Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" furnished below are

those which are relevant and available to the Company for this year.

Particulars

Defined Benefit Obligations :

Particulars
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ii) Changes in fair value of plan assets are as follows:  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year 52.48                             48.81                            

Investment income 3.78                               3.67                               

Contributions by employer -                                -                                

Benefits paid -                                -                                

Return on plan assets , excluding amount recognised in net interest expense -                                -                                

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 56.26                            52.48                            

iii) Net asset/(liability) recognised in the balance sheet  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the year 187.09                           226.66                          

Fair value of plan assets at the end of the year 56.26                             52.48                            

Amount recognised in the balance sheet (130.84)                         (174.18)                          

                                    -                                       -   

(130.84)                         (174.18)                         

iv) Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Current service cost 42.72                             22.66                            

Net Interest Cost / (Income) on the Net Defined Benefit Liability / (Asset) 14.20                             8.71                               

Total Expenses included in employee benefits expense 56.92                            31.37                             

v) Recognised in the other comprehensive income for the year  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

                             (57.21)                             43.84 

                            (16.63)                                 2.71 

                                4.15                              (5.40)

                                    -                                       -   

                           (69.69)                              41.15 

vi) Maturity profile of Defined Benefit Obligation  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

 4 years  10 years 

vii) Quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as below

Increase/(decrease) in present value of defined benefits obligation at the end of the year   ₹ in Lacs 

Particulars

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligations                          (7.37)                         7.95                             (19.89)                              22.81 

Particulars

1% Increase 1% Decrease 1% Increase 1% Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligations                           7.58                         (7.17)                               21.56                             (19.25)

Sensitivity level

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Assumptions Salary Growth rate

Sensitivity level

Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense

Recognised in comprehensive income

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows)

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Assumptions Discount rate

Net (liability)/asset - Current

Net (liability)/asset - Non-current

Actuarial (gain)/losses arising from

 - change in demographic assumptions

 - change in financial assumptions

 - experience variance (i.e. actual experience vs assumptions)
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Particulars

50% Increase 50% Decrease 50% Increase 50% Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligations                        (13.53)                       26.61                              (12.67)                              16.30 

Particulars

10% Increase 10% Decrease 10% Increase 10% Decrease

Impact on defined benefit obligations                        (0.02)                         0.02                               (0.16)                                0.16 

Sensitivity Analysis Method

viii) The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars
 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Investments with insurer 100% 100%

i)The principle assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations are as follows:  ₹ in Lacs

Particulars  March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 

Discount rate 6.90% 7.20%

Expected rate of return on plan assets 

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 11.00% 12.00%

Mortality
 Indian assured 

mortality table 2012-14 

 Indian assured 

mortality table 2012-14 

Attrition rate 23.00% 5.00%

ix) Effect of Plan on Entity's Future Cash Flows

a)  Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

b)  Expected Contribution during the next annual reporting period

c)  Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

 ₹ in Lacs

 March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024 

1 year 47.51 10.71                           

2 to 5 years 105.98 48.60                         

6 to 10 years 76.29 182.28                        

More than 10 years 27.47 260.35                       

c)

Through its defined benefit plan of Gratuity, the Company is exposed to its number of risks, viz. asset volatility, changes in return on assets, inflation risks and life

expectancy. The Company has purchased insurance policy, which is a year-on-year cash accumulation plan in which the interest rate is declared on yearly basis and is

guaranteed for a period of one year. The Insurance Company, as part of the policy rules, makes payment of all gratuity outgoes happening during the year (subject to

sufficiency of funds under the policy). The policy, thus, mitigates the liquidity risk.

Compensated absences/ leaves

Other long term employee benefits comprise of compensated absences/leaves, which are recognised based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial liability for compensated

absences as at the year ended March 31, 2025 is ₹ 182.86 Lacs (March 31, 2024: ₹ 185.17 Lacs).

The overall expected rate of return on assets is determined based on the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to be

settled. There has been significant change in expected rate of return on assets due to change in the market scenario.

The Company has purchased an insurance policy to provide for payment of gratuity to the employees. Every year, the insurance company carries out a funding valuation

based on the latest employee data provided by the Company. Any deficit in the assets arising as a result of such valuation is funded by the Company.

The company expects to contribute ₹ 155.77 Lacs /- (previous year ₹ 100.39 Lacs) to gratuity fund in the next year.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4 years (31 March 2024: 10 years). The expected maturity

analysis of gratuity benefits is as follows :

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):

k) Risk Exposure and Asset Liability Matching

Assumptions Mortality rate

Sensitivity level

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding

all other assumptions constant.

* As the gratuity fund is managed by Tata AIA Life Insurance Company Limited, details of fund invested by insurer are not available with company.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and

demand in the employment market.

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 

Assumptions Attrition rate

Sensitivity level

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2025 

 For the year ended

 March 31, 2024 
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33 Below are the ratio as on  March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

Sr 

No
Ratio Name March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

%

Variance

Reason

for

variance

1 Current 0.71 1.52 -53.28% Refer note (i)

2 Debt-Equity 0.28 0.62 -54.37% Refer note (ii)

3
Debt Service 

Coverage
1.70 1.70 0.10% NA

4 Return on Equity 0.04 0.03 45.35% Refer note (iii)

5 Inventory Turnover NA NA NA Refer note (iv)

6
Trade Receivables 

Turnover
2.95 1.91 54.34% Refer note (v)

7
Trade Payable 

Turnover
6.97 5.88 18.70%

8 Net Capital Turnover 49.08 4.42 -1009.39% Refer note (vi)

9 Net Profit 0.04 0.04 7.96%

10
Return on Capital 

Employed
0.10 0.06 54.36% Refer note (vii)

11
Return on 

Investment
NA NA NA -

Note : 

(i)

(ii) Debt Equity Ratio improves on account of Repayment of borrowings in form of Inter corporate loan Availed from its parent company during the year.

(iii) Return on Equity ratio improves on account of increase in profit during the year.

(iv) As the company is in the service industry, ratio is not applicable.

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

34 Audit Trail

35 Statutory Information

I

ii

iii

iv

v

vi

vii

viii

ix

x

The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers)

Rules, 2017.

The Company does not have any transactions with companies which are struck off. 

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries.

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (funding party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing

or otherwise) that the Company shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the funding party(ultimate beneficiaries) or

b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries

The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the

tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company does not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property.

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period. 

The Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financials institution or lender during the year. 

The Company was not required to file quarterly statement/returns of current assets with the banks or financial institutions w.r.t. secured working capital borrowings.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that

the intermediary shall:

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the accounting software except the audit trail feature is enabled, for certain direct changes to SAP 

application and its underlying HANA database when using certain privileged / administrative access rights by authorised users  where the process is started during the 

year and stabilised from March 17, 2025.  Further, there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such 

feature is enabled.

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

The decline in the current ratio as compared to the previous year is primarily attributable to a decrease in current assets, mainly on account of lower trade receivable

balances, coupled with an increase in current liabilities due to higher current maturities of lease liabilities recognized under Ind AS 116. 

The increase in the Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio as compared to the previous year is primarily due to higher revenue during the year. Additionally, the trade

receivable balance as at year-end is lower owing to revenue for the month of March being recorded as accrued revenue, which is not included under trade receivables. 

Net Capital Turnover ratio improves due to increase in revenue and decrease in the average working capital balances during the current year. 

Return on Capital Employed ratio improves on account of increase in EBIT and decrease in capital employed on account of repayment of borrowings in form of Inter

corporate loan Availed from its parent company during the year.

Formula 

Current Assets / 

Current Liabilities

Revenue from Operation /

Avg Net Assets

Profit After Tax /

Revenue from Operations

Earnings before Interest andTaxes /

Capital Employed (Tangible Networth+Total Debt)

NA

Total Debt / 

Shareholder's Equity

Earnings available for debt service (PAT + Interest cost + 

Foreign Exchange Loss or (Gain) (net) + Depreciation) /

Debt Service ( Interest cost & lease payments +  

repayment of non current debt made during the period 

excluding refinanced loans))

Net Profit after Taxes /

Avg Equity Shareholder's Fund

NA

Revenue from operations /

Average Accounts Receivable

Operating exp & Other expense/

Average Trade Payable
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1 Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited

2 Fellow Subsidiary Adani Logistics Limited

Adani Gangavaram Port Limited

Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited

Udanvat Leasing Ifsc Limited

3 Entities over which Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives have Adani Bunkering Private Limited

control / joint control / significant influence & Entity having significant ACC Limited

influence over the Parent has control / joint control / significant Adani Airport Holdings Limited

influence through voting powers Adani Capital Private Limited

Adani Cement Industries Limited

Adani Cementation Limited

Adani Electricity Mumbai Limited

Adani Enterprises Limited

Adani Estate Management Private Limited

Adani Estates Private Limited

Adani Green Energy Limited

Adani Power Limited

Adani Road Transport Limited

AGNEL Developers LLP

Ahmedabad International Airport Limited

Alton Buildtech India Private Limited

Ambuja Cements Limited

Astraeus Services IFSC Limited

Bailadila Iron Ore Mining Private Limited

Belvedere Golf and Country Club Private Limited

Esteem Construction Company Private Limited

Gare Palma II Collieries Private Limited

Gare Pelma III Collieries Limited

Guwahati International Airport Limited

Jaipur International Airport Limited

Kurmitar Iron Ore Mining Private Limited

Kutch Copper Limited

Lucknow International Airport Limited

Mahanadi Mines and Minerals Private Limited

Mangaluru International Airport Limited

Mumbai International Airport Limied

Mumbai International Airport Limited 

Mundra Solar Energy Limited

Mundra Solar PV Limited

Mundra Solar Technology Limited

Portsmouth Buildcon Private Limited

Stratatech Mineral Resources Private Limited

Talabira (Odisha) Mining Private Limited

TRV (Kerala) International Airport Limited

Vishakha Renewables Private Limited

Adani Infra (India) Limited

Kalinga Alumina Ltd

MP Natural Resources Private Limited

Adani Tracks Management Services Limited

Lotis IFSC Pvt Ltd

Aviground Facilities Private Limited

Adani Foundation

Penna Cement Industries Limited

4 Key Management Personnel

Capt. Saroj Mohapatra, Director

Mr. Satwindersing Bhatti, Director

Mr. Piyush Gandhi, Chief Financial Officer

Mrs. Komal Jain, Company Secretary (w.e.f. 13.10.2023)

Mr. Malay Rameshmahadevia (w.e.f. 15.11.2024)

Mr. Ashish Rajvanshi (w.e.f. 15.11.2024)

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

Notes:

The names of the related parties and nature of the relationships where control exists are disclosed irrespective of whether or not there have been transactions between the related 

parties. For others, the names and the nature of relationships is disclosed only when the transactions are entered into by the Company with the related parties during the existence 

of the related party relationship.

Outstanding balances of related parties at the year-end are unsecured. There have been no guarantees received or given for any related party receivables or payables.

Transactions entered into with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.

Capt. Nirav Bhatt, Director (Resigned w.e.f. 01.12.2024)

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Related Party Disclosure

The Management has identified the following entities and individuals as related parties of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 for the purpose of reporting as

per Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures which are as under:-
Parent Company



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(A) Transactions with Related Party  ₹ in Lacs

Sr 

No
Head Relationship Name of Related Party

Year Ended

March 31, 2025

Year Ended

March 31, 2024

Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 3,003.45                         12,926.90                   

Adani Cement Industries Limited -                                   1.16                              

Adani Enterprises Limited 3,519.04                          2,168.23                     

Adani Estate Management Private Limited -                                   226.80                       

Adani Green Energy Limited 920.88                            670.51                        

Adani Gangavaram Port Limited 2,002.47                         -                              

Adani Infra (India) Limited 1,400.07                          -                              

Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited 2,834.62                         -                              

Adani Logistics Limited 1,387.57                           -                              

Adani Power Limited 870.04                            2.11                              

Adani Road Transport Limited -                                   2,225.91                      

Agnel Developers LLP -                                   11.63                           

Ambuja Cements Limited 4,307.94                         -                              

ACC Limited 4,291.65                          -                              

Alton Buildtech India Private Limited -                                   115.24                         

Esteem Construction Company Private Limited -                                   14.54                          

Gare Palma II Collieries Private Limited -                                   24.87                          

Gare Pelma III Collieries Limited -                                   5.27                             

Kurmitar Iron Ore Mining Private Limited -                                   6.32                             

Kutch Copper Limited -                                   0.53                            

Kalinga Alumina Ltd -                                   2.11                              

Mahanadi Mines and Minerals Private Limited -                                   5.80                            

MP Natural Resources Private Limited -                                   3.16                             

Mundra Solar Energy Limited 1,441.94                          1,045.98                     

Mundra Solar PV Limited 2,816.81                          796.95                        

Mundra Solar Technology Limited -                                   204.66                       

Portsmouth Buildcon Private Limited -                                   334.37                        

Adani Tracks Management Services Limited -                                   27.40                          

Stratatech Mineral Resources Private Limited -                                   6.85                            

Talabira (Odisha) Mining Private Limited -                                   21.08                          

Vishakha Renewables Private Limited 6.00                                 3.00                            

28,802.48                    20,851.37                 

Fellow Subsidiary Udanvat Leasing Ifsc Limited 3.92                                  -                              

Other Entity* Lotis IFSC Pvt Ltd 6.96                                 -                              

Adani Airport Holdings Limited 201.01                             93.84                          

Ahmedabad International Airport Limited 440.95                            328.63                        

Belvedere Golf and Country Club Private Limited 1.59                                  1.82                             

Guwahati International Airport Limited 1.75                                  0.05                            

Jaipur International Airport Limited 6.01                                  0.53                            

Lucknow International Airport Limited 2.12                                  1.89                             

Mangaluru International Airport Limited -                                   0.35                            

Mumbai International Airport Limited 152.45                             122.55                         

TRV (Kerala) International Airport Limited 1.24                                  0.21                             

Aviground Facilities Private Limited 93.49                               -                              

911.47                           549.88                     

4 Purchase of Spares and consumables, Power & Other Entity* Udanvat Leasing IFSC Limited 231.75                              -                              

5 Donation Other Entity* Adani Foundation 23.00                               22.00                          

Capt. Saroj Kumar Mohapatra

 - Short-term benefits 129.88                             109.50                        

 - Post-employment benefits 15.08                               7.83                             

 - Other long-term benefits -                                   3.40                            

144.96                          120.73                      

Nirav Bhatt

 - Short-term benefits 84.37                               169.33                        

 - Post-employment benefits 46.72                               9.59                            

 - Other long-term benefits -                                   3.91                             

131.08                           182.83                      

Piyush Gandhi

 - Short-term benefits 29.22                               26.63                          

 - Post-employment benefits 1.91                                  1.74                             

 - Other long-term benefits -                                   0.74                            

31.13                              29.11                         

Astraeus Services IFSC Limited 4,058.25                         3,891.61                      

Udanvat Leasing Ifsc Limited 2,215.55                           -                              

Adani Airport Holdings Limited 76.50                               -                              

10 Interest Expenses Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 1,206.12                           1,151.83                      

11 Loans Taken Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 31,130.00                        42,243.00                  

12 Loans Repaid Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 41,811.00                        25,244.00                  

KMP - Chief Financial Officer

9 Lease Rent Other Entity*

KMP - Director

7

6 Remuneration

Total

Remuneration KMP - Director

8 Remuneration

Other Entity*

1

Total

2 Recovery of Expense

3
Services Availed (including reimbursement of 

expenses)

Other Entity*
Income from Rendering of Services



Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(B) Balances with Related Party  ₹ in Lacs

Sr 

No
Head Relationship Name of Related Party

As on

March 31, 2025

 As on 

March 31, 2024

Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited -                                   5,151.56                     

Fellow Subsidiary Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited 286.42                            

Adani Enterprises Limited 778.03                             1,148.66                     

Adani Estate Management Private Limited -                                   212.02                        

Adani Estates Private Limited -                                   0.04                           

Adani Green Energy Limited 122.25                              149.28                       

Adani Power Limited 327.80                             -                             

Adani Road Transport Limited 4,262.96                         5,007.67                    

Adani Infra (India) Limited 623.53                             -                             

Alton Buildtech India Private Limited -                                   27.14                          

Mundra Solar Energy Limited -                                   223.31                        

Mundra Solar PV Limited -                                   159.56                        

Portsmouth Buildcon Private Limited -                                   326.67                       

Vishakha Renewables Private Limited -                                   3.54                            

6,400.98                     12,409.46                

Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited -                                   8.67                            

Other Entity* Ahmedabad International Airport Limited 16.61                                43.84                         

Adani Airport Holdings Limited 22.63                               9.60                           

Fellow Subsidiary Udanvat Leasing Ifsc Limited 227.74                             

Aviground Facilities Private Limited 7.51                                  -                             

Jaipur International Airport Limited -                                   0.20                            

Guwahati International Airport Limited -                                   0.05                           

Lucknow International Airport Limited 0.17                                  0.22                            

Mangaluru International Airport Limited -                                   0.34                            

Belvedere Golf And Country Club Private Limited 10.28                               -                             

Adani Infra (India) Limited 0.10                                 -                             

Penna Cement Industries Limited 0.19                                  -                             

Mumbai International Airport Limited 33.65                               18.44                          

318.88                          81.37                        

3 Advance from Customer Other Entity* Adani Estate Management Private Limited 0.39                                 -                             

0.39                              -                           

Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 213.88                             17.33                           

Fellow Subsidiary Adani Gangavaram Port Limited 163.02                             

Adani Krishnapatnam Port Limited 237.64                             

Adani Logistics Limited 116.44                             

Astraeus Services IFSC Limited 640.66                            638.26                       

Adani Airport Holdings Limited 35.49                               35.49                         

Adani Enterprises Limited 322.94                             16.05                          

Ambuja Cements Limited 356.46                            -                             

ACC Limited 356.46                            -                             

Adani Green Energy Limited 71.29                                -                             

Adani Power Limited 71.29                                -                             

Adani Infra (India) Limited 118.82                              -                             

Mundra Solar Energy Limited 118.23                              -                             

Mundra Solar PV Limited 236.45                             -                             

Mumbai International Airport Limited 5.00                                 5.00                           

3,064.07                       712.12                       

Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 1,085.51                          1,080.30                    

Fellow Subsidiary Udanvat Leasing Ifsc Limited 469.45                            -                             

Ahmedabad International Airport Limited -                                   74.69                         

Mumbai International Airport Limited -                                   5.14                            

Adani Estate Management Private Limited -                                   0.32                            

1,554.96                       1,160.45                   

6 Borrowings Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 9,626.46                    20,307.46                 

7 Perpetual Securities Parent Company Adani Ports And Special Economic Zone Limited 30,000.00                     30,000.00                

Total

Trade Receivable

Total

4 Other Financial & Non-Financial Assets

Other Entity*

Trade Payable (including provisions)

Other Entity*

Other Entity*

Total

Total

2

5 Other Financial & Non-Financial Liabilities

Other Entity*

Total

* Entities over which (i) Key Management Personnel and their relatives & (ii) entities having significant influence over the Company have control or are under significant influence

   through voting powers.

1



Notes to Financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

37 Events occurring after the Balance sheet Date

38 Approval of financial statements

For SHAH DHANDHARIA & CO LLP For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Firm's Registration No.: 118707W/W100724

Harshil Shah Dr. Malay Mahadevia

Partner Director Director

DIN: 09404900 DIN: 00064110

Piyush Gandhi Komal Jain

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place: Ahmedabad

The Company evaluates events and transactions that occur subsequent to the balance sheet date but prior to the approval of financial statements to determine the

necessity for recognition and/or reporting of any of these events and transactions in the financial statements. As of April 23, 2025, there are no subsequent events to be

recognized or reported that are not already disclosed.

Karnavati Aviation Private Limited

Place: Ahmedabad

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025

The financial statements were approved for issue by the board of directors on April 23, 2025

Chartered Accountants

Capt. Sarojkumar Mohapatra

Membership No. 181748


